
 

Hillsdale Planning Board Minutes 

February 23, 2015 

 

Present: Hank Henward, Chairman; Deborah Bowen; Mark Barbato; Ellen Levy; Patti Rohrlich;  

Vivian deGeorges, Secretary 

Excused: Richard Freiman; Bud Gardner; 

Also Present:  Jeff Paige; Jaimie Purinton; Vincent Mackowski, attorney 

Mr. Henward opened the meeting at 7:33 PM 

Frank Pinto property possible new owners at 350 Torey Hill Farm Road - Terry Porter and 

Mark Mackowski representing Tax ID 135.-2-52  

Mr. Porter brought maps with building drawings showing that the building has been lowered.  

The proposed addition total area is now 2215 sq. ft. and had been about 2400.  It’s now pushed 

back from the edge of the main portion of the building.  Mr. Porter talked about what he and 

the Board saw and noticed about the parking area when they went for a site visit today.  Ms. 

Levy asked where the retaining wall is.  Mr. Porter showed it to her on the map.  He also 

showed photographs.  The photos were taken last spring.  He also described that there’s no 

basement, but a garage on a slab.   

Mr. Henward asked what the total height of the garage is, and Mr. Porter answered 27’.  There 

was some discussion over photographs, showing where the addition would be, coming forward 

from the present house.   

Ms. Rohrlich said that when the lights are on, the face of the building will look huge.  A lot of 

people are going to be looking up at a huge line of lights.  If you’re not signed off on all those 

windows, perhaps they can reconsider reducing the size and amount of them. Mr. Porter said 

that they are going to be putting up trellis work and vines against the house, so that they’ll still 

be able to see their view but it would soften the amount of light.   

Ms. Levy asked if the whole building could be turned at an angle somewhat, so the whole face 

doesn’t look straight down.  Mr. Porter said that it’s a very narrow cleared area, so there’s not a 

lot of level land behind it, that the hill is right behind which doesn’t give much room to move 

the house.   



Hillsdale Planning Board Minutes 

February 23, 2015 continued 

 

Mr. Henward asked Ms. Purinton about her part in this application.  She said she was helping 

with recommending plantings, though she was not hired as a landscaper, but at the meeting to 

support Mr. Porter or answer questions.  She further said that she thinks Mr. Porter did a great 

job with this, and it’s stepped back and that she thinks it’s the best he could do without 

disturbing any trees.  She said she’s glad he brought the garage back to the new position and 

bringing down the height is good.  For a 30 acre property, it’s very compact development.  

There are hundreds of witch hazel and about a hundred fruit trees.  Sumac and poplar are 

growing in the riprap that was put down previously.   

Ms. Levy asked if there is some screening in front of the addition.  Mr. Porter said that right 

now, it’s a vegetable garden and they wouldn’t want to cast shadow on the vegetable garden.  

There was then further discussion about plantings.   

Mr. Henward said the fact that they got rid of the tennis court is good.  It may be possible to 

plant some understory vegetation to prevent the view under the trees.  Ms. Purinton said it’s 

pretty dense right now.  There’s screening in front of the garage, but there needs to be some in 

front of the addition as well.  The will also be using non-reflective glass and low-reflective roof 

material.   

Ms. Rohrlich asked Mr. Porter to see if there’s any chance to revisit the amount of glass.  There 

may be some flexibility with the family, if they can have less glass, less window, and still have 

their view.   

Mr. Henward said that he thinks now that they’re not doing the tennis court, we won’t need a 

public hearing, but we’ll need a planting plan.  It’s our understanding there will be no additional 

tree removal.  Mr. Porter said we may need a little for the septic area.  Mr. Henward asked to   

see that on the plan.  All site work needs to be on the map for approval.  We may need a public 

hearing but we won’t know till we get the rest of the information.  The approval process is two-

part - one building permit for the clearing and prep, and then one for the building itself.  There  

may be some road work, the expanding of the leach field, etc.  That would be phase 1.  Also, 

the County has to approve the septic.   

Tentatively on the April agenda. 

Skaarup Farm   Tax ID 126.-2-13 Mark Cawley representing ;  Dan Russell, surveyor 



Mr. Russell started by saying that this is basically the same discussion we had some months 

ago.   He showed the map and described that the Skaarup family wants the part of this parcel   

Hillsdale Planning Board Minutes 

February 23, 2015 continued 

 

north of Overlook and Mitchell which will entail a two-lot subdivision.  The dividing line will be 

through the pond.  The resulting lot is 72 acres.  The other piece contains 140 acres. 

Mr. Henward asked Mr. Cawley what part of these lands is currently on the market.  Mr. Cawley 

said that as of right now, nothing is on the market, the listing is expired, but that it will be going 

on again shortly.  The plan is for Stephanie to have the 72-acre parcel and the other piece on 

the side north of Mitchell would be sold to another family member.  We’re trying to see if we 

can sell the whole almost 400 acres as one parcel.  If it hasn’t sold by June, then it will have to 

be sold separately.  Discussion about the different configurations of parcels for sale.  There 

won’t be any access to the back piece without building a bridge over the Roe Jan Kill.              

Mr. Henward asked so you’re just looking to get an approval for a subdivision?  Mr. Cawley 

answered yes.   

Mr. Henward said that we’ll need perc tests.  Discussion about sharing the pond with another 

owner.  Mr. Cawley said that there will be a pond owners’ agreement, no powerboats, etc., 

which will have to be put in place in order to share it.  Mr. Henward asked that Mr. Cawley 

check the location of underground aquifers and setbacks from the Roe Jan Kill.  He also told   

Mr. Cawley that he’d need the driveway permit.  There was some discussion about non-profit 

foundations interested in a piece of land this size (700 acres), such as Scenic Hudson, CLC, etc.  

Mr. Cawley said that he’s approached several of these foundations and hasn’t found any 

interest yet. 

Tentatively May public hearing and meeting 

Mr. Twente  Tax ID 117.-2-03 Lot #22 of Green River Estates, done in the 60’s, this piece 

bought in 1981.  Site Plan Review - Pat Prendergast representing; Doug Casterlin, neighbor 

Received:  application; maps; short form SEQRA; check for $100 

Mr. Prendergast showed the parcel, which is off Stagecoach Road, on the map, and the fact that 

the road is the common road for 3 parcels.  He pointed out the parcel as it appears on the 

Ridgeline Overlay map.  He showed the level area just before the slope starts.  This site is #42 

Stagecoach Road.  Mr. Prendergast also showed a new survey with topo lines.  The driveway is 

an existing driveway.  The extension of the driveway was put in before 1981.  The total parcel is 

34 acres.   



Mr. Prendergast said that they are looking to regrade the driveway to about 12% slope, and make 

the driveway  12’ wide according to code, and then put in the septic system.  He showed a detailed map  

 

Hillsdale Planning Board Minutes 

February 23, 2015 continued 

 

for the driveway and septic.  He described the driveway as about 350-375’ long.  Mr. Prendergast said 

that Mr. Twente has had the property for sale since about 2006, so now we’ve done a new survey and 

maps, so he can sell the property.  We found pins and checked deeds, etc.   

Mr. Casterlin said that one of the concerns I have is that at least once a year my driveway floods out and 

I wasn’t happy about having another house causing more runoff which I have a lot of right now.  There 

are drainage ditches that need to be maintained, perhaps.  The other thing is a driveway maintenance 

agreement which I’d be interested in doing with this drive.  Mr. Henward asked if the road from 

Stagecoach up to you is owned by the association.  No, Mr. Casterlin said.  There is no association.  It’s 

separately deeded and it’s not owned by anyone (maybe the original relatives of the original developer 

of this estate) so the road isn’t owned by anyone.  It’s called Stagecoach Road Extension.  As for 

Stagecoach, a private road, all the neighbors pitch in but there’s no formal association or agreement.  

But if someone else builds, we should have a shared driveway agreement.  I think all the homes on 

Stagecoach have a deeded right-of-way.   

Mr. Henward asked for any comments, questions, then suggested that Mr. Prendergast ask his client 

about more cleaning out of the lower ditch/culvert.  Mr. Prendergast said he would, and that on the 

revised maps, he’ll show a building envelope and approved septic as well as any tree clearing.   

Mr. Henward then asked Mr. Casterlin if he maintains the driveway from Stagecoach Extension to his 

house himself and Mr. Casterlin said yes, that it’s about 600’ long.  Mr. Henward suggested that maybe 

Mr. Twente has somewhere in his deed that he should have some responsibility for the shared 

driveway.  He then asked Mr. Prendergast to call us when he gets the DOH letter and also find out if it’s 

a shared driveway and, if so, we’ll want a driveway maintenance agreement. 

Tentative May meeting. 

Matthew White - discussion of his plans for the buildings on Rt. 23 

Because we postponed the last meeting and Matt was on the agenda, he couldn’t make this one or 

March’s so he gave us drawings for the Board to look at and go back to him with any questions.   This is a 

commercial property which requires site plan review.  He’s already gone to the ZBA and gotten change 

of use approval. 

He plans to use the driveway from B&G to go through the back of the properties and come out beyond 

Veronica Zignon’s former property, which Matt has purchased.  The buildings are all on the sewer 



system.  Matt is looking to receive Historic tax credits by demolishing behind Ms. Zignon’s house, leaving 

the historic cottage which is there.  The Victorian house will be gutted and made into a kitchen shop.   

Discussion about parking, the problems with it, suggestions for making it work. 

Hillsdale Planning Board Minutes 

February 23, 2015 continued 

 

Mr. Henward asked that these questions be asked of Mr. White by email, to be answered by him so that 

we can further discuss this application: 

1. Do you currently have a legal agreement with Kathleen Avenia from B&G regarding 
opening up the parking lot behind the building so it would join the spaces you’re 
planning behind the other buildings east of B&G?  Is there an alternate plan if either 
Kathleen or any future owner of that property decides not to open up that space to 
the rest of the proposed parking lot? 

2.  Do you have a curb cut approval from the DOT for the driveway you’re proposing 
east of Veronica Zignon’s former property?  
3.  Are all the lots for the buildings you have purchased going to be joined into one tax     
ID?  

    4.  Have you maximized the parking spaces behind the buildings?  
    5.  Have you planned for service entrances for delivery in the rear of the buildings?  
     6.  On your maps, do you have the correct alignment of the town sidewalks which will 
be in front of your buildings?  
 

Mr. Henward asked for a motion to adjourn.  The motion was made by Mr. Barbato and seconded by 

Ms. Rorhlich.  The vote was all ayes and Mr. Henward adjourned the meeting at 9:45 PM. 

 

The next meeting will be Monday, March 9. 


